
Any person who requires accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting to request a disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 
Materials that are provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet is compiled and distributed will be made available 
for public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting materials 
are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 
 

 
 

12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 Phone: (909) 797-5117 
 

 

Notice and Agenda of a Meeting  
of the Board of Directors 

Tuesday, October 19, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
 

 

This meeting is available by calling (888) 475-4499 
Meeting ID: 676-950-731#  

 

Participate in the meeting online at 
https://zoom.us/j/676950731 

Passcode: 765589 
 

There will be no public physical location  
available to attend this meeting in person.   

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may briefly address the Board of Directors on 
matters within its jurisdiction or on any matter listed on this agenda.   

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR - All consent calendar matters are routine and will be acted upon in one motion.  
There will be no discussion of these items unless board members, administrative staff, or members of the 
public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed prior to the vote for approval.   

A. Adoption of Resolution No. 2021-50 Proclaiming a Local Emergency, Ratifying the 
Proclamation of a State of Emergency by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, and 
Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Bodies of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District for the Period of November 4, 2021 to December 3, 2021 Pursuant to 
Brown Act Provisions 

B. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting – October 5, 2021 

C. Payment of Bills 

1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts 

2. Ratify General Expenses for September 2021 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 1 of 201

http://www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/
https://zoom.us/j/676950731


 
Page 2 

V. STAFF REPORT 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June 30, 2021 
[Director Memorandum No. 21-164 - Page 21 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board receive and file the audited financial 
statements. 

B. Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on September 30, 
2021 [Director Memorandum No. 21-165 - Page 82 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial 
report. 

C. Award of a Construction Contract for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project 
[Director Memorandum No. 21-166 - Page 108 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
award a construction contract for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project 
to Borden Excavating, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $4,047,174. 

D. Consideration of Administrative Changes to the Sorenson Engineering Class I Significant 
Industrial User Discharge Permit No. CP-001-03 [Director Memorandum No. 21-167 - Page 
115 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize District Staff to issue the 
2021-2023 Sorenson Engineering Class I Significant Industrial User Discharge 
Permit No. CP-001-03 and grant the request to increase their discharge limitation. 

E. Consideration of the Purchase and Installation of a Highline for Interim Drinking Water 
Service to Knoll Drive, Yucaipa [Director Memorandum No. 21-168 - Page 140 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
proceed with the purchase and installation of a highline for a sum not to exceed 
$58,262.23. 

F. Public Hearing - Discussion Regarding the Redistricting Process and Opportunity for Initial 
Public Input [Director Memorandum No. 21-169 - Page 144 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Pending 

G. Overview of Financial Goals and Formation of a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for 
the Formation of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Financing Authority [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-170 - Page 147 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff Presentation - No Recommendation. 

H. Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-51 Updating the Calculation for Facility Capacity 
Charges Related to the Purchase of Permanent Supplemental Water Resources for New 
Development within Riverside County [Director Memorandum No. 21-171 - Page 159 of 
201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board approve Resolution No. 2021-51. 

I. Consideration of the Proposed Workers’ Compensation Insurance Policy Renewal for 2021-
22 [Director Memorandum No. 21-172 - Page 168 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute contracts with Redwood F&C Berkshire Hathaway for workers’ 
compensation insurance. 

J. Consideration of Renewing the Cyber Liability Insurance for 2021-22 [Director 
Memorandum No. 21-173 - Page 173 of 201] 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to 
execute contracts with Alliant Insurance Services for cyber liability insurance. 

VII. BOARD REPORTS & DIRECTOR COMMENTS 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 2 of 201



 
Page 3 

VIII. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. November 2, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

B. November 16, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

C. December 7, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

D. December 21, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

E. January 4, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. - Meeting Cancelled 

F. January 18, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Meeting 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 3 of 201



 

Consent Calendar 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 4 of 201



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-50 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL  

EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF  
EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND  
AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE  

LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT  
FOR THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 4, 2021 TO DECEMBER 3, 2021  

PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District is committed to preserving and nurturing public 
access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 
 
WHEREAS, all meetings of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s legislative bodies are open and 
public, as required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any 
member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct 
their business; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provisions for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 
  
WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 
or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and 
 
WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or extreme 
peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the District’s 
boundaries, caused by natural, technological, or human-caused disasters; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 
 
WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the District, specifically, a state of emergency has been 
proclaimed due to an outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now 
known as COVID-19); and  
 
WHEREAS, the San Bernardino County Department of Health has recommended measures to 
promote social distancing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has determined that the state of emergency continues to 
directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the current state of emergency with 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 5 of 201



 

respect to COVID-19, local official recommendations to promote social distancing, and conditions 
causing imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees have caused, and will continue to 
cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond 
the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires to proclaim 
a local emergency and ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State 
of California; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency, the Board of Directors does hereby find 
that the legislative bodies of the Yucaipa Valley Water District shall conduct their meetings without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall comply with 
the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) 
of subdivision (e) of section 54953; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
  
Section 1.   Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

into this Resolution by this reference. 
  
Section 2.   Proclamation of Local Emergency.  The Board hereby proclaims that a local 

emergency now exists throughout the District and declares that meeting in person 
would not comply with local official recommendations to promote social distancing 
and would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees. 

  
Section 3.   Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency.  The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020 

 
Section 4.   Remote Teleconference Meetings.  The General Manager and legislative bodies 

of the Yucaipa Valley Water District are hereby authorized and directed to take all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, 
conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code 
section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 
Section 5.  Effective Date of Resolution.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption 

and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) thirty (30) days from the adoption of this 
Resolution, or such time the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during 
which the legislative bodies of the Yucaipa Valley Water District may continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 
54953. 

  
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 6 of 201



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, this 19th 
day of October, 2021. 
 
 
   

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 7 of 201



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL BOARD MEETING - TELECONFERENCE 
 

October 5, 2021 at 4:00 pm 
 

 
This meeting was available for in person attendance as well as available to the public by calling 
(888) 475-4499 using passcode 676-950-731 and live presentation material was available at 
https://zoom.us/j/676950731 using 765589. 
 

CALL TO ORDER The special meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District was called to order by 
Chris Mann at 4:00 p.m. 
 

ROLL CALL The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director 
Lonni Granlund, Director Chris Mann, Director Joyce 
McIntire, and Director Nyles O’Harra present.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS None 

Directors Present: Staff Present: 
 Chris Mann, President  

Lonni Granlund, Vice President  
Jay Bogh, Director  
Joyce McIntire, Director 
Nyles O’Harra, Director 
 

Wade Allsup, Information Systems Specialist 
Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager 
Madeline Blua, Water Resource Specialist 
Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 
Chelsie Fogus, Administrative Assistant I 
Ashley Gibson, Regulatory Compliance Manager 
Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager 
Tim Mackamul, Operations Manager 
Steve Molina, Public Works Supervisor 
Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 
Mike Rivera, Public Works Manager 
Charles Thomas, Operations Manager 
Joseph Zoba, General Manager 
 

 
Directors Absent:  Consulting Staff Present: 
 None Bryan Brown, Special Counsel  

Steven Graham, Legal Counsel 
Greg Newmark, Special Counsel 
Robert Porr, Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates 
 

 
Registered Guests and Others Present: 
 Logan Largent, Ortega Strategies Group 

Michelle Lopez, News Mirror 
Larry Smith, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 8 of 201

https://zoom.us/j/676950731


Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR Director Lonni Granlund moved to approve the consent 
calendar and Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the 
motion. 
 
A. Minutes of Meetings 

1. Board Meeting – September 21, 2021 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten provided 
information about the following items:  

• On September 27, 2021, Fitch Rating Services 
reaffirmed the AA municipal bond rating for the 2015 
A debt obligation.  The District staff is currently 
preparing plans to refinance the existing water and 
sewer debt based on favorable cost savings to the 
District. 

 
General Manager Joseph Zoba reported on the following 
items: 

• The District staff is testing new Aqua Star sewer 
cleaning equipment from Kaiser AG.  The Aqua Star 
vehicle provides an efficient way to clean the sewer 
collection system since the system minimizes the 
time needed to refill the water tanks on the existing 
cleaning equipment. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

DM 21-159 
 
CONSIDERATION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-49 
PROCLAIMING A LOCAL 
EMERGENCY, RATIFYING THE 
PROCLAMATION OF A STATE 
OF EMERGENCY BY 
GOVERNOR NEWSOM ON 
MARCH 4, 2020, AND 
AUTHORIZING REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES 
OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of 
AB 361 and Resolution No. 2021-49 which would 
authorize the use of remote teleconference meetings for 
the period of October 5, 2021 to November 3, 2021. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra moved that the Board adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-49. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 9 of 201



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 3 of 4 

WATER DISTRICT FOR THE 
PERIOD OF OCTOBER 5, 2021 
TO NOVEMBER 3, 2021 
PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT 
PROVISIONS  
 

Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 21-160 
 
OVERVIEW OF STATEWIDE 
AND LOCAL WATER 
CONSERVATION EFFORTS  
 

General Manager Joseph Zoba provided an overview of 
the activities by District staff to achieve the 15% water 
conservation goal established by Governor Newsom in 
July 2021. 
 

DM 21-161 
 
STATUS UPDATE FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT OF DRINKING 
WATER RESERVOIRS R-17.1.1 
AND R-17.1.2 - YUCAIPA  
 

Implementation Manager Matthew Porras provided an 
overview of the pipeline and reservoir construction at the 
Reservoir R-17.1 complex. 

DM 21-162 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
NO. 2021-17 FOR SEWER 
SERVICE TO TRACT NO. 18167 
LOCATED AT 34419 – 34443 
AVENUE H AND 13508 – 13530 
4TH STREET, YUCAIPA 
(ASSESSOR PARCEL 
NUMBERS 0319-233-12, 0319-
233-13 AND 0319-233-88) 
 

Administrative Assistant Chelsie Fogus provided an 
overview of Development Agreement No. 2021-17 for 
sewer service to Tract No. 18167. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund moved that the Board authorize 
the Board President to execute Development Agreement 
No. 2021-17. 
 
Director Nyles O’Harra seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

DM 21-163 
 
CONSIDERATION OF A 
RESOLUTION RE-INSTATING 
LATE FEES ON UTILITY BILLS  
 

Chief Financial Officer Allison Edmisten provided an 
overview of the proposed resolution to reinstate fees for 
delinquent water and sewer customer accounts. 
 
Director Joyce McIntire moved that the Board adopt 
Resolution No. 2021-48. 
 
Director Lonni Granlund seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was approved by the following vote:  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 10 of 201



Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 4 of 4 

Director Jay Bogh - Yes 
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes 
Director Chris Mann - Yes 
Director Joyce McIntire - Yes  
Director Nyles O’Harra - Yes 

 

BOARD REPORTS AND 
DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
 

None 

ANNOUNCEMENTS Chris Mann called attention to the announcements listed 
on the agenda.   
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m.   
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      
              Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary       (Seal) 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 11 of 201



Board Awarded Contracts
Consent Calendar Board Meeting - October 19, 2021

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Director 
Memorandum Job or GL #

Job Cost 
Breakdown

Awarded 
Contract 
Amount

Prior 
Payments to 

Date

Pending 
Invoice 
Amount

Total 
Contract 

Payments

Remaining 
Contract 
Amount

Cole Huber LLP - - *-5-06-54107 - - - - $0 $4,500 $4,500

APGN Inc. 21-085 03-000-14500 - - $768,520 $357,689 $0 $357,689 $410,831
WWTP Secondary Treatment- turbo blowers/bubble diffflusers Task #87041

DDB Engineering   (R-Reserves) 15-086 04-19771 - - $35,900 $25,395 $0 $25,395 $10,505
Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins

Delta Partners $90,000 per year-Legislative Consult (exp 12/18) W\S Oper 13-079 *-5-06-54109 $90,000 $360,000 $300,000 $7,500 $307,500 $52,500
Three Year Contract Extension (exp 12/2021) 19-052 *5-06-54109 $270,000

Dudek         (S-Operating) 20-038
2020-2021 Max Benefit Monitoring for San Timoteo/Yucaipa Mgmt. Zones 03-5-06-54109 - - $52,338 $50,641 $0 $50,641 $1,697

Dudek         (S-Operating) 21-101
2021-2022 Max Benefit Monitoring for San Timoteo/Yucaipa Mgmt. Zones 03-5-06-54109 - - $47,764 $4,894 $2,101 $6,995 $40,769

Dudek         (S-Operating) 20-037 65-15339
2020-Habitat Monitoring Program (HMP) in San Timoteo Creek 03-5-06-57030 - - $52,660 $49,355 $975 $50,330 $2,330

ECORP             (W/S Reserves) 02-5-06-54109
Prepare Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration/Oak Valley Recharge 18-157 77-32719 $47,520 $52,020 $25,974 $0 $25,974 $26,046
DM 19-039 Ratification of original contract-addt'l sum not to exceed $4500.00 19-093 $4,500

ECORP             (W/S Reserves) 03-502-51003
YVWD-Salinity and Groundwater Enhancement (Sage) Project W/S Reserves 19-022 88-23792 $9,645 $266 $0 $266 $9,379

Geoscience
Injection and Monitoring Well for Aquifer Storage/Beaumon Basin 21-031 03-5-06-54109 - - $450,818 $40,446 $1,300 $41,746 $409,072

Geoscience
Tracer Study Analysis at Wilson Creek Spreading Basins ($34,560.00) 19-024 02-5-06-54109 - - $42,490 $36,222 $0 $36,222 $6,268
DM 20-008 Budget Amendment for the Tracer Study ($7,930.00)_ 20-008

GHD
SCADA Master Planning Document for WWTP 21-062 03-506-54109 - - $78,090 $20,721 $0 $20,721 $57,369

One Stop Landscape Supply FY 20-21 Sludge Hauling\Reuse (Oper) - - 03-5-02-57031 - - - - $243,568 $20,803 $264,371
 

District Awarded Contracts

 Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 12 of 201



Board Awarded Contracts
Consent Calendar Board Meeting - October 19, 2021

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

Director 
Memorandum Job or GL #

Job Cost 
Breakdown

Awarded 
Contract 
Amount

Prior 
Payments to 

Date

Pending 
Invoice 
Amount

Total 
Contract 

Payments

Remaining 
Contract 
AmountDistrict Awarded Contracts

RMC Water & Environment/Woodard & Curran
TO#26, SRF Mgmt. Svcs-Calimesa Regional Recycled Pipeline (R-FCC) 14-023 04-5-06-54109 $95,692 $69,361 $0 $69,361 $26,331

Separation Processes, Inc.                                (W-Reserves) 55-19200
Design & Construction Supports Servs for NF SCRAM 15-047 02-14500 $191,820 $170,980 $0 $170,980 $20,840

Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins (R-Resrvs) 15-086 04-19771 - - $42,860 $24,527 $0 $24,527 $18,333

Feasibility Report for Wochholz SAGE Project ($67,575.00) 17-043 03-5-06-54109 $99,835 $98,311 $0 $98,311 $1,524
         Preliminary Engineering Design Study-SAGE Project ($32,260.00) 19-106 03-5-06-54109

WWTP Monitoring Operations & Reporting Enhancement (MORE) (S-Oper) 18-122 03-5-06-54109 $330,436 $309,392 $2,306 $311,698 $18,738

WWTP -RCA - Foaming- Improve energy efficiency and treatment process 19-025 03-5-06-54109 $36,800 $34,621 $0 $34,621 $2,179

WWTP -Secondary Treatment Process Improvement 20-073 03-5-06-54109 $158,753 $143,561 $5,684 $149,245 $9,508

WWTP - Reverse Osmosis Pilot Study 20-099 03-5-06-54109 $192,860 $46,851 $748 $47,599 $145,261

Spiess Construction 21-090 02-000-14500 - - $1,701,725 $141,215 $68,290 $209,505 $1,492,220
Reservoir R-17.1.1 & R-17.1.2 Replacement Task #90857

WWTP- Autostrainer Replacement (Sewer Reserves)
Pascal Ludwig-$229,111.00 20-132 03-13002 $487,000 $409,899 $0 $409,899 $77,101
Forstra Filters -$152,208.00
Q-Versa- $28,800.00

GRAND TOTALS $4,801,026 $2,193,990 $114,207 $2,308,197 $2,838,800

 Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 13 of 201



Check Register ‐ September 2021

Date Check # Payee or Description Amount
09/01/2021 39785 Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 747.50$            
09/01/2021 39786 ADS, LLC 6,210.00$          
09/01/2021 39787 Aramark Uniform and Career Apparel, LLC 809.59$            
09/01/2021 39788 AutoZone Stores LLC 203.40$            
09/01/2021 39789 Backflow Apparatus & Valve Co. 2,499.80$          
09/01/2021 39790 Best Home Center 120.57$            
09/01/2021 39791 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 24,074.16$        
09/01/2021 39792 California Municipal Treasurers Associat 95.00$              
09/01/2021 39793 California Water Technologies, LLC 5,676.92$          
09/01/2021 39794 Commercial Solar Guy 5,000.00$          
09/01/2021 39795 ECORP Consulting, Inc. 4,970.14$          
09/01/2021 39796 Fastenal Company 1,386.56$          
09/01/2021 39797 Forstra Filters, Inc. 837.13$            
09/01/2021 39798 Grainger 787.17$            
09/01/2021 39799 Haaker Equipment Company 6,769.76$          
09/01/2021 39800 Hasa, Inc. 7,840.47$          
09/01/2021 39801 Home Depot U.S.A. Inc 1,173.43$          
09/01/2021 39802 Houston & Harris PCS, Inc. 3,946.50$          
09/01/2021 39803 JW D'Angelo Co. 860.62$            
09/01/2021 39804 Leighton Consulting, Inc. 5,116.50$          
09/01/2021 39805 Les Schwab Tire Center 621.03$            
09/01/2021 39806 Lowe's Companies, Inc. 746.35$            
09/01/2021 39807 Max Machinery, Inc. 1,072.49$          
09/01/2021 39808 Merit Oil Company 6,774.96$          
09/01/2021 39809 Municipal Maintenance Equipment, Inc. 625.49$            
09/01/2021 39810 Nalco Company 12,049.45$        
09/01/2021 39811 National Business Furniture LLC 609.89$            
09/01/2021 39812 NetComp Technologies,Inc. 1,511.26$          
09/01/2021 39813 Pollardwater 516.88$            
09/01/2021 39814 Redlands-Yucaipa Rentals Inc. 44.00$              
09/01/2021 39815 San Bdno. Valley Muni. Water Dist. 60,706.18$        
09/01/2021 39816 SB CNTY-Fire Protection District 2,070.00$          
09/01/2021 39817 SB CNTY-Solid Waste Mgmt Div 220.94$            
09/01/2021 39818 SCCI, Inc. 350.00$            
09/01/2021 39819 Steven Enterprises, Inc 155.15$            
09/01/2021 39820 Summit Environmental Srvcs, Inc. 4,690.75$          
09/01/2021 39821 Superior Automotive Warehouse, Inc 188.51$            
09/01/2021 39822 The Gas Company 78.19$              
09/01/2021 39823 TPX Communications 4,500.98$          
09/01/2021 39824 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc. 25.00$              
09/10/2021 39825 California State Disbursement Unit 628.14$            
09/10/2021 39826 IBEW Local #1436 660.00$            
09/10/2021 39827 WageWorks Inc 1,686.89$          
09/13/2021 39828 All American Sewer Tools 637.59$            
09/13/2021 39829 Alpine Springs 90.00$              
09/13/2021 39830 Applied Membranes, Inc. 962.09$            

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 14 of 201



Check Register ‐ September 2021

Date Check # Payee or Description Amount
09/13/2021 39831 Aramark Uniform and Career Apparel, LLC 797.92$            
09/13/2021 39832 Best Home Center 36.68$              
09/13/2021 39833 California Water Environment Association 192.00$            
09/13/2021 39834 Caselle, Inc. 2,870.00$          
09/13/2021 39835 Clinical Laboratory of San Bernardino 7,748.00$          
09/13/2021 39836 Corelogic, Inc. 330.00$            
09/13/2021 39837 Coverall North America, Inc. 805.00$            
09/13/2021 39838 Crown Ace Hardware - Yucaipa 37.56$              
09/13/2021 39839 Epic Pest Management 85.00$              
09/13/2021 39840 Freedom Mailing Services 7,971.25$          
09/13/2021 39841 Frontier Communications 172.92$            
09/13/2021 39842 G&G Environmental Compliance,Inc 5,573.60$          
09/13/2021 39843 GLS US 123.79$            
09/13/2021 39844 JW D'Angelo Co. 1,261.49$          
09/13/2021 39845 Konica Minolta Business Solutions 478.50$            
09/13/2021 39846 Koritas Tires Inc. 10.00$              
09/13/2021 39847 Krieger & Stewart, Incorporated 121,639.25$      
09/13/2021 39848 Merit Oil Company 8,078.92$          
09/13/2021 39849 Micro Motion, Inc. 2,252.50$          
09/13/2021 39850 NCL Of Wisconsin Inc 86.79$              
09/13/2021 39851 NetComp Technologies,Inc. 770.85$            
09/13/2021 39852 Nexa 695.00$            
09/13/2021 39853 Pacific Coast Landscape & Design, Inc. 21,000.00$        
09/13/2021 39854 Q Versa, LLC 14,705.00$        
09/13/2021 39855 Reign Industries Inc 3,950.00$          
09/13/2021 39856 Separation Processes, Inc. 7,691.39$          
09/13/2021 39857 State of California - Department of Just 64.00$              
09/13/2021 39858 State Water Resources Control Board 2,923,668.75$   
09/13/2021 39859 The Counseling Team International 300.00$            
09/13/2021 39860 Time Warner Cable 1,727.10$          
09/13/2021 39861 Underground Service Alert Of So. CA 422.50$            
09/13/2021 39862 Water Environment Federation 267.00$            
09/13/2021 39863 Yucaipa Disposal, Inc. 2,532.19$          
09/13/2021 39864 Yucaipa Urgent Care Center 300.00$            
09/13/2021 39865 Yucaipa Valley Water District 70,998.79$        
09/20/2021 39866 APGN Inc. 32,517.16$        
09/20/2021 39867 David L. Wysocki 1,575.00$          
09/20/2021 39868 Delta Ventures Inc. 7,500.00$          
09/20/2021 39869 Dudek & Associates, Inc 1,975.00$          
09/20/2021 39870 Geoscience Support Services, Inc. 1,435.75$          
09/20/2021 39871 One Stop Landscape Supply Inc 21,217.50$        
09/20/2021 39872 Separation Processes, Inc. 19,305.29$        
09/20/2021 39873 Meyers Nave, A Professional Corporation 40,361.04$        
09/20/2021 39874 Adler Luis Ribaya 200.49$            
09/20/2021 39875 Aqua-Metric Sales Company 321.50$            
09/20/2021 39876 Aramark Uniform and Career Apparel, LLC 1,628.53$          

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 15 of 201



Check Register ‐ September 2021

Date Check # Payee or Description Amount
09/20/2021 39877 AT&T Mobility 2,148.38$          
09/20/2021 39878 AutoZone Stores LLC 92.09$              
09/20/2021 39879 Bay Alarm Company 5,557.50$          
09/20/2021 39880 Beaumont Basin Watermaster 3,000.00$          
09/20/2021 39881 Billy Lyon 1,523.29$          
09/20/2021 39882 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 18,568.48$        
09/20/2021 39883 BSK Associates 1,025.00$          
09/20/2021 39884 Cal Pro Contracting, Inc 437.68$            
09/20/2021 39885 Clark Pest Control 118.00$            
09/20/2021 39886 Cobb's Printing, LLC 370.66$            
09/20/2021 39887 Contron Scada Systems 3,346.33$          
09/20/2021 39888 Coverall North America, Inc. 526.00$            
09/20/2021 39889 Crown Ace Hardware - Yucaipa 368.64$            
09/20/2021 39890 Daily Journal Corporation 1,702.80$          
09/20/2021 39891 David Wahe 510.82$            
09/20/2021 39892 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 2,248.85$          
09/20/2021 39893 Fastenal Company 1,013.81$          
09/20/2021 39894 Fedex 49.21$              
09/20/2021 39895 Fisher Scientific Co. 169.77$            
09/20/2021 39896 Frontier Communications 46.25$              
09/20/2021 39897 Geoscience Support Services, Inc. 1,887.00$          
09/20/2021 39898 Hach Company 52.09$              
09/20/2021 39899 Harrington Ind. Plastic, LLC 244.56$            
09/20/2021 39900 Hasa, Inc. 8,805.96$          
09/20/2021 39901 Houston & Harris PCS, Inc. 3,946.50$          
09/20/2021 39902 Inland Water Works Supply Co. 4,377.79$          
09/20/2021 39903 Jason Carlson 1,000.00$          
09/20/2021 39904 JW D'Angelo Co. 3,612.33$          
09/20/2021 39905 Max Machinery, Inc. 1,125.79$          
09/20/2021 39906 Merit Oil Company 5,444.14$          
09/20/2021 39907 NetComp Technologies,Inc. 300.00$            
09/20/2021 39908 Office Solutions Bsns Products, L 1,921.75$          
09/20/2021 39909 Pacific Coast Landscape & Design, Inc. 475.00$            
09/20/2021 39910 Polydyne Inc. 20,777.15$        
09/20/2021 39911 Quinn Company 33,980.45$        
09/20/2021 39912 SB CNTY-Solid Waste Mgmt Div 31.24$              
09/20/2021 39913 SCE Rosemead 911,602.79$      
09/20/2021 39914 Separation Processes, Inc. 12,484.25$        
09/20/2021 39915 Sinclair Rock and Sand Inc. 4,025.00$          
09/20/2021 39916 Spectrum Business 3,668.00$          
09/20/2021 39917 U.S. POSTAL SERVICE (Hasler) 2,000.00$          
09/20/2021 39918 White Cap, LP 152.21$            
09/20/2021 39919 Wilbur's 673.22$            
09/20/2021 39920 California FAIR Plan 4,953.00$          
09/20/2021 39921 Farmers Insurance 1,405.86$          
09/20/2021 39922 VOID -$                  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 16 of 201



Check Register ‐ September 2021

Date Check # Payee or Description Amount
09/20/2021 39923 VOID -$                  
09/24/2021 39924 California State Disbursement Unit 628.14$            
09/24/2021 39925 WageWorks Inc 1,686.89$          
09/27/2021 39926 Doug Earnest 685.14$            
09/27/2021 39927 Jesse McCartney 685.14$            
09/27/2021 39928 Joe DeSalliers 603.35$            
09/27/2021 39929 Peggy Little 685.14$            
09/27/2021 39930 Robert Wall 799.13$            
09/27/2021 39931 WageWorks, Inc. 191.75$            
09/27/2021 39932 Aflac 2,602.23$          
09/27/2021 39933 Blue Shield of California 4,083.10$          
09/27/2021 39934 Nippon Life Insurance Co 2,772.61$          
09/27/2021 39935 Standard Dental Insurance Co 1,309.12$          
09/27/2021 39936 Standard Insurance Vision Plan 329.56$            
09/27/2021 39937 Western Dental Services Inc 230.92$            
09/27/2021 39938 American Melt Blown & Filtration Inc. 3,650.00$          
09/27/2021 39939 Aqua-Metric Sales Company 15,792.70$        
09/27/2021 39940 Aramark Uniform and Career Apparel, LLC 806.53$            
09/27/2021 39941 Avista Technologies, Inc. 6,935.90$          
09/27/2021 39942 Brenntag Pacific, Inc 10,310.53$        
09/27/2021 39943 Center Electric Services, Inc. 1,080.00$          
09/27/2021 39944 Charles P. Crowley Company, Inc. 18,009.15$        
09/27/2021 39945 Clinical Laboratory of San Bernardino 4,653.50$          
09/27/2021 39946 Crestline Specialties, Inc. 5,676.74$          
09/27/2021 39947 ECORP Consulting, Inc. 18,147.96$        
09/27/2021 39948 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC 332.12$            
09/27/2021 39949 GHD Inc 7,854.08$          
09/27/2021 39950 Grainger 629.11$            
09/27/2021 39951 Home Depot U.S.A. Inc 893.33$            
09/27/2021 39952 Houston & Harris PCS, Inc. 3,946.50$          
09/27/2021 39953 JW D'Angelo Co. 20,664.02$        
09/27/2021 39954 Les Schwab Tire Center 2,427.36$          
09/27/2021 39955 Merit Oil Company 6,611.38$          
09/27/2021 39956 Michael Jones 385.00$            
09/27/2021 39957 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc. 127.99$            
09/27/2021 39958 Quadient Leasing USA, Inc 353.07$            
09/27/2021 39959 Redline 29,558.54$        
09/27/2021 39960 S & J Supply Co., Inc 3,543.90$          
09/27/2021 39961 SB CNTY-Fire Protection District 2,408.00$          
09/27/2021 39962 SCCI, Inc. 350.00$            
09/27/2021 39963 Smarthire 62.00$              
09/27/2021 39964 Spectrum Business 2,649.00$          
09/27/2021 39965 Yucaipa Urgent Care Center 370.00$            

4,776,318.70$   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 17 of 201



Check Register ‐ September 2021

Date Check # Payee or Description Amount
09/10/2021 electronic pmt DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL 178,163.66$      
09/10/2021 electronic pmt CalPERS 457 & Loan 29,339.40$        
09/10/2021 electronic pmt CalPERS Retirement 33,936.71$        
09/10/2021 electronic pmt EDD - State of California 15,203.44$        
09/10/2021 electronic pmt IRS 77,640.55$        
09/10/2021 electronic pmt VOYA 457 Retirement Plan 4,602.81$          
09/24/2021 electronic pmt DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL 154,954.93$      
09/24/2021 electronic pmt CalPERS 457 & Loan 26,799.76$        
09/24/2021 electronic pmt CalPERS Retirement 33,949.32$        
09/24/2021 electronic pmt EDD - State of California 12,463.35$        
09/24/2021 electronic pmt IRS 64,431.26$        
09/24/2021 electronic pmt VOYA 457 Retirement Plan 3,759.74$          
09/27/2021 electronic pmt CalPERS Health Insurance 93,284.88$        

728,529.81$      

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 18 of 201



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 19 of 201



 

Discussion Items 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 20 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-164 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on 
June 30, 2021 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the audited financial statements. 

 
The certified public accounting firm of Davis Farr, LLP has completed the financial audit for the 
fiscal year ending on June 30 ,2021. 
 
A representative from Davis Farr, LLP will attend the board meeting to provide an overview of the 
audited financial documents and answer questions about the report.   
 

 

$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

$160,000,000

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

2

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

3

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

4

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

5

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

6

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

7

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

8

0
6
/3

0
/1

9
9

9

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

0

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

1

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

2

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

3

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

4

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

5

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

6

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

7

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

8

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
0

9

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

0

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

1

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

2

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

3

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

4

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

5

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

6

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

7

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
1

9

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
2

0

0
6
/3

0
/2

0
2

1

Total Assets by  District Enterprise

Water Assets

Sewer Assets

Recyled Water Assets

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 21 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 2 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 22 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 3 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 23 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 4 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 24 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 5 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 25 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 6 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 26 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 7 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 27 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 8 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 28 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 9 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 29 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 10 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 30 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 11 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 31 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 12 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 32 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 13 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 33 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 14 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 34 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 15 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 35 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 16 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 36 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 17 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 37 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 18 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 38 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 19 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 39 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 20 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 40 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 21 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 41 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 22 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 42 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 23 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 43 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 24 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 44 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 25 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 45 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 26 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 46 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 27 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 47 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 28 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 48 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 29 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 49 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 30 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 50 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 31 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 51 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 32 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 52 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 33 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 53 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 34 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 54 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 35 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 55 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 36 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 56 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 37 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 57 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 38 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 58 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 39 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 59 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 40 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 60 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 41 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 61 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 42 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 62 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 43 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 63 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 44 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 64 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 45 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 65 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 46 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 66 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 47 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 67 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 48 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 68 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 49 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 69 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 50 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 70 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 51 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 71 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 52 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 72 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 53 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 73 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 54 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 74 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 55 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 75 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 56 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 76 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 57 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 77 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 58 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 78 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 59 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 79 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 60 of 61 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 80 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-164  Page 61 of 61 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 81 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-165 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Presentation of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
September 30, 2021 

Recommendation: That the Board receive and file the unaudited financial report. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. Please remember that the following financial information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance and Cash Flow Reports 
 

The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 

 

Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy. 
 

($6,000,000)

($4,000,000)

($2,000,000)

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
ec

-1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
ec

-2
0

Ja
n

-2
1

Fe
b

-2
1

M
ar

-2
1

A
p

r-
2

1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

Ju
l-

2
1

A
u

g-
2

1

Se
p

-2
1

Fund Balance

Drinking Water Fund - Operating Drinking Water Fund - Restricted

Sewer Fund - Operating Sewer Fund - Restricted

Recycled Water Fund - Operating Recycled Water Fund - Restricted

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 82 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 2 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 83 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 3 of 26 

 

 

The Cash Flow Report provides a list of the debt service payment due dates and amounts as well 
as the cash flow requirements for debt service for each month of the fiscal year.    
 

 

 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000
Cash Position

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 84 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 4 of 26 

 

Cash Disbursement Report 
 
The cash disbursement report lists each check and electronic payment processed during the 
month.  All payments are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, checks are 
usually signed by the General Manager and one Director but may be signed by two Directors.  
The Chief Financial Officer will make any check, payment, invoice or supporting documentation 
available for review to any board member upon request. 
 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 85 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 5 of 26 

 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 86 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 6 of 26 

 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 87 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 7 of 26 

 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 88 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 8 of 26 

 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 89 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 9 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 90 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 10 of 26 

 

Financial Account Information 

 
The District currently deposits all revenue received via mail or in person into the Deposit Checking 
account.  All revenue received through Invoice Cloud is also deposited into the Deposit Checking 
account.  The General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District 
checks and electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and 
redemption of US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury 
notes and bills are booked at cost. 

 
Invoice Cloud:  Invoice Cloud is a third-party vendor the District utilizes to process credit card 
payments, echecks, online payments from customers, as well as phone payments processed 
without a live customer service representative. 
 

 
 

Compared to 7,278 customers enrolled on Xpress Bill Pay 
 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

Monthly Utility Revenue

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 91 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 11 of 26 

 

 
 

 
Compared to 2,455 on Xpress Bill Pay and 3,294 on Invoice Cloud last month 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 92 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 12 of 26 

 

 

We are continuing to work on building reports through Invoice Cloud for Auto Pay Customers as 

well as payments by payment source for the most recent month end.  

Investment Summary  
 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account 
administered by the State of California.  Additional information on the LAIF account is provided 
below in the investment summary report. 
 
Investment Policy Disclosure - The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment 
Policy and State law.  The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management 
(Bank of America Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its 
expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 93 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 13 of 26 

 

Summary of Property Tax Revenue:   
 

Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Amount Percentage 

Property Taxes $                   0   $                3,718,826       0% 

 
 
 

Management Discussion 

 
This section is included in the monthly unaudited report to discuss items of importance that may 
have a financial impact on the District.   
 

• The District continues to track the aging trends for Utility Receivables as a result of COVID-
19 (see below). 

• The annual financial audit will be presented to the Board October 19th. 

• The District is currently in the process of ordering the large meters that will be replaced as 
part of the $75,000 grant that was received. 

• The District received a $75,000 grant for Basin Groundwater Monitoring Project 

• District staff are currently working with Fieldman Rolapp on potential refinancing of debt. 

• The Finance group currently has job openings for front counter staff which are anticipated 
to be filled in November.  

 
 

 

$
3

,5
7

3
,2

7
7

 

$
3

,8
7

2
,4

4
8

 

$
-

$
3

,2
1

1
,9

6
7

 

$
3

,2
0

8
,8

6
3

 

$
3

,7
1

8
,8

2
6

 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 2019-20  2020-21  2021-22

Property Taxes - Actual vs. Budget

Actual Allocation/Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 94 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 14 of 26 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 95 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 15 of 26 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 96 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 16 of 26 

 

Fiscal Year 2021-22 Detail Budget Status 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2021-22 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

 
Questions or Comments 

 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Chief Financial Officer directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the 
Administrative Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may 
desire.  

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 97 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 17 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 98 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 18 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 99 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 19 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 100 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 20 of 26 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 101 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 21 of 26 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 102 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 22 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 103 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 23 of 26 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 104 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 24 of 26 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 105 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 25 of 26 

 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 106 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-165 Page 26 of 26 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 107 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-166 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: 81810 

Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Implementation Manager 

Subject: Award of a Construction Contract for the Calimesa Recycled Water 
Conveyance Project 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to award a construction 
contract for the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project to 
Borden Excavating, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $4,047,174. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has 
completed the design and bid package for 
the Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance 
Project.  On April 6, 2021, the Board of 
Directors authorized the General Manager to 
solicit bids for the project [Director 
Memorandum 21-071].  The project will 
connect the existing recycled water mainline 
located within Avenue L in the City of 
Calimesa, to the existing facilities and 
customers in the southern end of the 
District’s service area.  
 
The proposed pipeline project involves 
approximately 11,865 ± linear feet of 24-inch 
cement mortar lined ductile iron pipe, 
including various valves, appurtenances, 
and connections. 
 
The design drawings have been shared with 
the State Water Resources Control Board 
Division of Drinking Water, City of Calimesa, 
and South Mesa Mutual Water Company for 
review and comments.   
 
The purpose of the item is to award a 
construction contract for the project.  The 
table below summerizes the bids that have 
been submitted within the bid period.   
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 108 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 2 of 7 

$4,047,174 

$4,933,216 

$5,035,000 

$5,055,555 

$5,640,990 

$5,830,018 

$5,975,142 

$5,986,860 

$5,998,585 

Borden Excavating, Inc.

Downing Construction, Inc.

Engineers Estimate

E.J. Meyer Company

James W. Fowler Co.

Ferreira Construction Co., Inc.

MCC Equipment Rentals, Inc.

Christensen Brothers General
Engineering, Inc.

Weka, Inc.

Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Project- Bid Results

District staff recommends the Board award the construction contract to Borden Excavating Inc. 
for a sum not to exceed $4,047,174 based on the submitted bids and the attached letter of 
recommendation from Krieger & Stewart Engineering Consultants. 
 
 
Financial Impact 
 
The total cost of this project, which includes this construction contract will be funded as follows:  

• $2,892,500 from State Revolving Fund Loan,  

• $1,133,750 from Water Recycling Loan,  

• $1,758,750 Water Recycling Grant.   
 
The current interest rate for loans associated with this project is 0.90%. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 109 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 3 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 110 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 4 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 111 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 5 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 112 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 6 of 7 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 113 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-166  Page 7 of 7 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 114 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-167 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: John Wrobel, Public Works Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Administrative Changes to the Sorenson Engineering Class 
I Significant Industrial User Discharge Permit No. CP-001-03 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize District Staff to issue the 2021-2023 Sorenson 
Engineering Class I Significant Industrial User Discharge Permit No. 
CP-001-03 and grant the request to increase their discharge limitation. 

 
Publicly owned treatment works (POTWs) collect waste from homes, commercial buildings, and 
industrial facilities and transport the water carrying waste via a series of pipes, known as a sewer 
collection system to a sewer treatment plant.  Here, the POTW is responsible for separating the 
waste from the water.   
 
Generally, POTWs are designed to treat waste in water from typical domestic uses.  However, 
POTWs also receive waste from industrial (non-domestic) users.  Industrial wastewater often 
includes by-product chemicals from production and manufacturing processes that can contain 
chemicals such as copper, lead, nickel, and other heavy metals.  Because certain wastes can 
interfere with the biological or filtration treatment processes, these wastes must be removed 
before they are discharged into a sewer collection system.   
 
The removal process is known as "pretreatment" and is enforced by the General Pretreatment 
Regulations at 40 CFR 403.1 et seq. which establish the responsibilities of government agencies 
and industries to implement practices to control industrial wastes that may pass through or 
interfere with POTWs or contaminate sewage sludge. 
 
In 1978, U.S. EPA promulgated extensive regulations requiring many POTWs to develop and 
implement local pretreatment programs.  U.S. EPA delegated the responsibility to oversee these 
pretreatment programs to the State Water Board and Regional Water Boards in 1989.  As a result, 
the State and Regional Water Quality Control Boards are responsible for the review and approval 
of POTW pretreatment programs.  The discharge permits for POTWs spell out the pretreatment 
program monitoring and reporting requirements.  
 
The Regional Water Board's pretreatment program includes pretreatment compliance audits, 
inspections, annual and semiannual report reviews, program modifications, and enforcement 
activities.  Pretreatment compliance inspections verify the compliance status of POTWs, focusing 
on the POTW's own compliance monitoring and enforcement activities.  Pretreatment compliance 
audits involve a comprehensive review of all elements of a POTW's pretreatment program.  Audits 
take place every five years.  Inspections usually occur every year, except when an audit is 
scheduled. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 115 of 201

http://www.access.gpo.gov/nara/cfr/waisidx_06/40cfr403_06.html


Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 2 of 25 

The attached pretreatment permit outlines the pollutant limitations for the industrial wastewater to 
be discharged from the Sorenson Engineering Inc. facility located at 32032 Dunlap Blvd, Yucaipa, 
CA 92399.   

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 116 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 3 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 117 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 4 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 118 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 5 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 119 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 6 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 120 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 7 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 121 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 8 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 122 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 9 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 123 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 10 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 124 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 11 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 125 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 12 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 126 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 13 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 127 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 14 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 128 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 15 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 129 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 16 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 130 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 17 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 131 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 18 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 132 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 19 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 133 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 20 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 134 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 21 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 135 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 22 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 136 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 23 of 25 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 137 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 24 of 25 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 138 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-167  Page 25 of 25 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 139 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-168 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: 89496 

Prepared By: Mike Rivera, Public Works Manager 

Subject: Consideration of the Purchase and Installation of a Highline for Interim 
Drinking Water Service to Knoll Drive, Yucaipa 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to proceed with the 
purchase and installation of a highline for a sum not to exceed 
$58,262.23. 

 
On May 28, 2021, a drinking water 
mainline split which impacted the 
property at 11945 Pendleton Road, 
Yucaipa.  District crews repaired the 
mainline the same day.  The repair to the 
property where the mainline failed is 
being repaired by the District’s insurance 
company and was discussed on June 22, 
2021 [Director Memorandum 21-118].  
District staff is in the process of preparing 
a design for a new pipeline alignment 
within Knoll Drive which will provide a 
permanent installation of 8-inch ductile 
iron pipe which will be discussed at a 
future board meeting. 
 
This installation of a 4-inch High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) will be temporary.  The purpose of 
the temporary HDPE line is to replace the existing fragile mainline that previously failed, causing 
extensive damage to 11945 Pendleton Road.  The proposed highline pipeline project involves the 
installation of approximately 1,000 ± linear feet of 4-inch High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) 
including various valves, appurtenances, and water connections.  The quotes include the 
purchase of the pipeline material that will be able to be re-used for future temporary installations.  
The table below summarizes the bids that have been submitted to District staff.   
 
District staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to proceed with Rain for Rent 
for a sum not to exceed $58,262.23. 
 

Contractor Amount 

Rain for Rent $58,262.23 

West Coast Safety Supply $150,094.08 

Core & Main No Response 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 140 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-168  Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 141 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-168  Page 3 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 142 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-168  Page 4 of 4 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 143 of 201



 

 

 

 

Director Memorandum 21-169 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: Not Applicable 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Public Hearing - Discussion Regarding the Redistricting Process and 
Opportunity for Initial Public Input 

Recommendation: Pending. 

 
Every ten years, the District is required to review and redraw the division boundaries for the five 
elected officials.  This process, called redistricting, ensures all divisions remain balanced with 
the same number of constituents.   
 
The District staff is currently soliciting proposals from consultants to assist with the process.  
Information about the status of proposals received will be presented at the meeting for possible 
action by the Board of Directors. 
 
Additionally, at this time the District staff recommends conducting the first of several public 
hearings to receive public input regarding the proposed division modifications.  The purpose of 
this public hearing is to inform the public about the redistricting process and to provide the 
members of the community an opportunity to voice their opinions about the division boundaries.   
 
Over the coming months, residents are encouraged to visit the District’s redistricting website at: 
https://www.yvwd.us/about_us/redistricting.php to follow the process and receive updates on the 
redistricting process. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 144 of 201

https://www.yvwd.us/about_us/redistricting.php


Director Memorandum No. 21-169 Page 2 of 3 

 
 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 145 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-169 Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District 
Notice of Public Hearing 

Redistricting of Elected Official Division Boundaries 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water District will 
conduct a public hearing on October 19, 2021, at 4:00 p.m., at a publicly noticed meeting of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District at which time the Board of Directors will: (1) Receive a report on 
the redistricting process and permissible criteria to be considered to redraw the election division 
boundaries of the Board of Directors; and (2) Receive public input regarding the potential 
division boundaries of the Board of Directors.  
 
All interested persons are invited to participate in said hearing and express opinions related to 
this matter.  
 
Public comment via mail or email for this Public Hearing must be submitted prior to the meeting 
at which the commenter seeks to provide comment. Public comment may be submitted via U.S. 
Mail to the General Manager at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399 or via email to 
CustomerService@yvwd.us.  All mail and email correspondence will be archived, distributed to 
the Board of Directors, and retained as part of the public record; however, submissions will not 
be read aloud during the meeting.   
 
If any matter proposed herein is challenged in court, there may be a limitation to raising only 
those issues at the public hearing described herein, or in written correspondence delivered to 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District at, or prior to, the public hearing.  
 
Joseph B. Zoba 
General Manager 
 
Posted: October 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

 
I, Jospeh B. Zoba, General Manager of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, hereby declare 
under penalty of perjury that the Notice of Public Hearing for the Board of Directors of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District was posted on October 14, 2021.   
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 146 of 201



 

 

Director Memorandum 21-170 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: Not Applicable 

Prepared By: Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager 
Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Overview of Financial Goals and Formation of a Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement for the Formation of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Financing 
Authority 

Recommendation: Staff Presentation - No Recommendation. 

 
On June 29, 2004, the Yucaipa Valley Water District issued $45,730,000 of Water System 
Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2004A for the construction of the Yucaipa Valley 
Regional Water Filtration Facility. 
 
Between 2009 and 2016 the Yucaipa Valley Water District entered into contracts with the State 
Water Resources Control Board for six State Revolving Fund loans for the expansion and upgrade 
of the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility along with several other sewer related 
projects.  These loans currently have interest rates that range between 2.20-2.70%, which are 
well in excess of the current public market rates for comparable maturities.  
 
On February 26, 2015, the Yucaipa Valley Water District Financing Corporation refinanced the 
Series 2004A debt by issuing $30,810,000 in bonds as the Water System Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015A.   
 
The District staff has been working closely with our consultants to create a Financing Authority 
for the issuance of the future refinanced debt obligations.  The purpose of this agenda item is to 
discuss the general concepts, issues, and goals associated with the proposed refinancing.  
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 147 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 2 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 148 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 3 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 149 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 4 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 150 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 5 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 151 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 6 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 152 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 7 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 153 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 8 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 154 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 9 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 155 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 10 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 156 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 11 of 12 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 157 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-170 Page 12 of 12 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 158 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-171 

Date: October 19, 2021 

Prepared By: Joseph Zoba, General Manager 

Subject: Consideration of Resolution No. 2021-51 Updating the Calculation for Facility 
Capacity Charges Related to the Purchase of Permanent Supplemental Water 
Resources for New Development within Riverside County 

Recommendation: That the Board approve Resolution No. 2021-51. 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District currently charges $13,478 per dwelling unit for facilitate 
capacity charges for each new residential equivalent unit constructed in our service area.  This 
fee recovers costs expended by the District for the construction of the following facilities: 
 

Description of Drinking Water Component 
Existing Facility 

Capacity Charges 

Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility $3,811 

Recycled Water System $823 

Booster Pumping Plants $885 

Pipeline Facilities $4,407 

Water Storage Reservoirs $3,552 

Total $13,478 

 
While the District’s development related fees are typically more expensive than neighboring 
agencies, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has consistently pursued extensive improvements 
and fully integrated solutions to secure long-term, reliable, and resilient water and sewer service 
for our customers.   
 
On July 27, 2015, the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (“SGPWA”) 
adopted Resolution No. 2015-05 adopting facility capacity fees for new infrastructure and 
additional water resources.  The adoption of this resolution was deemed necessary by the 
SGPWA to “…meet future increasing demands for SGPWA supplemental water to the SGPWA 
service area which will require additional water facilities to be constructed to distribute water and 
to acquire additional water rights to meet future increasing demands.”1   
 

 
1 This fee only is applicable to developments in the Calimesa portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District service area.  
The portion of the Yucaipa Valley Water District in the City of Yucaipa receives imported water servce from the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 159 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 2 of 9 

 

On September 19, 2017, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2017-23 Establishing the 
Methodology to Calculate and the Collection of Facility Capacity Charges Related to the Purchase 
of Water Resources for New Development within the Boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency and the City of Calimesa.  This resolution was designed to be updated annually to reflect 
the reliability of imported water supplies from the State Water Project and to develop a pricing 
methodology that will secure permanent supplemental water supplies from alternative water 
supply sources.  Based on this methodology, the additional cost per residential dwelling unit in 
the City of Calimesa was calculated for a home (or equivalent unit) that is dual plumbed to receive 
recycled water for front and rear yard irrigation use.  This charge is not applicable to developments 
in the City of Yucaipa since there is an ample supply of supplemental water. 
 
The following methodology uses an estimated 6.5 kgal/month allocation to represent the drinking 
water demands.  The following monthly chart illustrates the amount of drinking water and recycled 
water used by dual-plumbed homes in Calimesa. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 160 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 3 of 9 

 

The 10-year rolling average for allocations from the State Water Project is currently at 49.5%. 
 

 
 

  

49.5% 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 161 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 4 of 9 

 

Methodology Used to Calculate the  
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge for  

Supplemental Water Resources 
 

• One Equivalent Dwelling Unit (1.0 EDU) that is dual-plumbed with drinking water and 
recycled water shall require supplemental water capacity equal to 6.5 kgal/month or 78 
kgal/year (214 gpd/EDU) to meet the drinking water demand. 

o Estimated Annual Drinking Water Demand = 78 kgal per year  
o Estimated Daily Drinking Water Demand of 214 gpd/EDU 

 

• 0% Interest  
 

• 49.5% State Water Project Reliability Factor - Ten-Year Rolling Average 
o 2020 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 20-05) 
o 2019 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 75% (DWR Notice 19-10) 
o 2018 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 18-05) 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85% (DWR Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60% (DWR Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% (DWR Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35% (DWR Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65% (DWR Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80% (DWR Notice 11-06) 
o 2010 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 50% (DWR Notice 10-11) 

 

• $6,231/Acre Foot Permanent Water Right Estimate 
o Most Recent San Gorgonio Pass Permanent Water Right Purchase Estimate 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
Calculation: 
 

78 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
3.069x10-6 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= 
1 kgal gallon acre foot 0.495 SWP reliability 

 

Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge = $3,013/EDU 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 162 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 5 of 9 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-51 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT SETTING FORTH 
AND UPDATING THE CALCULATION FOR FACILITY CAPACITY CHARGES 
RELATED TO THE PURCHASE OF PERMANENT SUPPLEMENTAL WATER 

RESOURCES FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT WITHIN RIVERSIDE COUNTY 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Yucaipa Valley Water District (the “District”) is a public agency of the State of 
California organized and existing pursuant to the provisions of the County Water District Law of 
this State (Section 30000, et seq. of the Water Code); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has adopted Facility Capacity Charges for drinking water, sewer, and 
recycled water services; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 27, 2015, the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency adopted Resolution No. 
2015-05 a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency to Adopt 
Facility Capacity Fees for Facilities and Water setting the supplemental water capacity fee at 
$6,231 per acre-foot; and  
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors reviewed Resolution No. 2015-05 adopted by the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and its Capacity Fee Study and related documentation 
(“Study”) supporting the need for supplemental water to provide service to new development 
within the boundary of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency; and   
 
WHEREAS, the above-referenced Study was discussed in detail by the District’s Board of 
Directors at several board workshops, board meetings, and a public hearing held on September 
19, 2017 for the adoption of Resolution No. 2017-23; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors is expected to secure supplemental water from the 
Pass Water Agency or from alternative sources as a permanent source of supply to provide 
sustainable water service to new development within the service area of the San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency and/or the City of Calimesa; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the supplemental water capacity charge is to purchase and/or finance, 
in whole or in part, permanent water resources dedicated to the District or to fund the 
implementation of a similar program that provides permanent supplemental water resources for 
new development within the boundary of the District as applicable to the common territory of the 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, the City of Calimesa, or the County of Riverside; and   
 
WHEREAS, the fee structure and methodology set forth below and based upon available data, 
studies and information by the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency represents the best available 
information to secure supplemental water resources at this time; and 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 163 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 6 of 9 

 

WHEREAS, the complete body of facts and evidence reviewed by the District’s Board of Directors 
during board workshops and board meetings, including the Pass Water Agency’s Study, 
demonstrate that the facility capacity charge related to supplemental water to be levied by the 
District will not exceed the estimated reasonable cost for providing the services for which the 
capacity charges are imposed and, therefore, complies with Government Code Section 66013; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, on November 19, 2019, the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to 
file a Notice to Adjust Rights of an Overlying Party Due to Proposed Provision of Water Service 
by an Appropriator with the Beaumont Basin Watermaster.  The Notice to Adjust Rights provided 
the District with all of the original 1,806 acre feet / revised 1,398.90 acre feet of Overlying Water 
Rights from Oak Valley Partners / Oak Valley Development Company; and  
 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2019, the Beaumont Basin Watermaster was provided with an 
executed Notice to Adjust Rights of an Overlying Party Due to Proposed Provision of Water 
Service by an Appropriator which provides all Overlying Water Rights from Oak Valley Partners / 
Oak Valley Development Company to the Yucaipa Valley Water District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the supplemental water facility capacity charge established herein is exempt from 
the California Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code, Section 21080(b)(8) because 
the charges are imposed to obtain funds necessary to maintain services within the District; and   
 
WHEREAS, this resolution shall be implemented to supplement the existing facility capacity 
charges currently in effect by the Yucaipa Valley Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the charges set forth herein are being adopted following a public hearing and notices 
provided in accordance with the requirements of Government Code, Section 66000, et seq., 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District, as follows: 
 
1. Purpose.  The purpose of this Resolution is to set forth the calculation and implementation 

for a Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge for new development receiving drinking 
water service from the Yucaipa Valley Water District in Riverside County. 

 
2. Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge Fee.  The following calculation is used to 

determine the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge: 
 

A. For the purposes of this Resolution the following factors shall be used for the 
calculation of the base Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge: 
 
i. One Equivalent Dwelling Unit (1.0 EDU) that is dual-plumbed with drinking 

water and recycled water shall require supplemental water capacity equal to 
6.5 kgal/month or 78 kgal/year (214 gpd/EDU). 

 
ii. Interest related costs for the procurement, construction, or financing of 

supplemental water sources of supply shall be 0% interest unless modified 
by future versions of this resolution. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 164 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 7 of 9 

 

iii. The average State Water Project Reliability shall be set at 49.5% which 
represents the most recent ten-year rolling average of State Water Project 
Allocations set by the California Department of Water Resources. 

 
o 2020 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20% 

(Department of Water Resources Notice 20-05) 
o 2019 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 75% 

(Department of Water Resources Notice 19-10) 
o 2018 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 18-05) 
o 2017 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 85%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 17-05) 
o 2016 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 60%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 16-06) 
o 2015 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 15-03) 
o 2014 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 20%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 14-08) 
o 2013 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 35%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 13-09) 
o 2012 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 65%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 12-09) 
o 2011 State Water Project Allocation on September 30 - 80%  

(Department of Water Resources Notice 11-06) 

 
iv. The Board of Directors has reviewed data, information, and studies that justify 

the cost for a permanent water right at $6,231/acre foot.  This value will be 
evaluated and subject to change in the future as additional information and 
studies are made reviewed for applicability to this Resolution. 

 
B. Based on the factors above, the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge is 

hereby established at: 
 

78 kgal x 
1,000 gal 

x 
3.069x10-6 AF 

x 
$6,231 

x 
1 

= 
1 kgal gallon acre foot 0.525 SWP reliability 

 

Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge = $3,013/EDU 

 
3. Collection of the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charges.  For new developments in 

Riverside County, the following Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charges shall be 
charged and collected prior to the issuance of building permits: 

 
A. Summerwind Ranch at Oak Valley - On January 9, 2018, Oak Valley Partners and 

San Gorgonio Land entered into an agreement for the payment of Overlying Water 
Rights.  Pursuant to the agreement between Oak Valley Partners and San Gorgonio 
Land, the applicable charge for Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charges is 
34% of the Supplemental Water Capacity Charge as agreed to in writing by Oak 
Valley Partners LP and San Gorgonio Land LLC or their respective assignees. 

 
B. Oak Valley Development Company - The development of parcels within the Oak 

Valley Development Company portion of the Oak Valley Project shall be charged the 
Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge based on drinking water demands 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 165 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 8 of 9 

 

associated with the anticipated residential, commercial, industrial, or institutional use 
as calculated by the District. 

 
C. Other Applicable Developments - Other residential, commercial, industrial, or 

institutional developments shall be charged a Supplemental Water Facility Capacity 
Charge equal to the calculation in Section 2.B. of this Resolution. 

 
3. Implementation of the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge.  The Board of Directors 

of the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the General Manager to include terms 
and conditions in development agreements for projects in Riverside County that request 
drinking water service from the District to ensure sufficient permanent water resource 
capacity is secured for the new developments. 
 
A. All new developments served by the Yucaipa Valley Water District shall receive 

bundled services of drinking water, recycled water, and sewer service within the 
territory of the Yucaipa Valley Water District in Riverside County unless specifically 
exempted by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 
B. All new developments shall be required to be dual-plumbed with recycled water to 

meet the irrigation demands and drinking water to meet domestic and fire flow 
demands unless specifically exempted by resolution of the Board of Directors.  

 
C. A Drinking Water Service Unit (WSU) shall be based on an equivalent volume of 

drinking water used to meet domestic water demands for a typical equivalent single-
family residential dwelling unit (EDU).  The District staff is directed to provide 
information to evaluate the conversion factor for the WSU based on data acquired in 
the future.   

 
D. Drinking water demand shall be determined for each parcel in units of gallons per day 

per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (gpd/EDU) and expressed as a Water Service Unit 
(WSU) to 1/10th.  The WSU will be used the calculate the Supplemental Water Facility 
Capacity Charge for each commercial, industrial and institutional development within 
Riverside County. 
 

E. Property owners and/or developers that provide permanent secured water rights 
and/or contribute to the funding of dependable water resources shall receive a credit 
for the Supplemental Water Facility Capacity Charge required by this resolution if the 
secured water resources are permanently dedicated and/or permanently available to 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 

 
F. Based on the calculation methodology in Section 2, the Supplemental Water Facility 

Capacity Charge will be re-adjusted after considering: (i) information, studies and 
reports related to the actual cost of securing permanent supplemental water supplies; 
(ii) information presented by the California Department of Water Resources for the 
final water year allocation of water from the State Water Project as a demonstration 
of reliability; (iii) securing overlying water rights in the region; and (iv) development 
and construction of the Salinity and Groundwater Enhancement (SAGE) Project or 
other similar projects that produce a provide a source of supplemental water to the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District.  

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 166 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-171 Page 9 of 9 

 

4. Equivalent Alternatives to Secured Supplemental Water Sources.  The Board of Directors of 
the Yucaipa Valley Water District hereby directs the District staff to pursue the planning and 
implementation of indirect potable reuse, direct potable reuse, and aquifer storage and 
recovery as a feasible alternative to securing supplemental water from areas outside of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District.  Funds collected pursuant to this Resolution may be used for 
the planning, design, construction, and operation of any indirect potable reuse project, direct 
potable reuse project, and/or aquifer storage and recovery project involving the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility, the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility, or 
other facility/location.  Furthermore, the District staff is directed to pursue Federal and State 
funding to bridge the anticipated shortfall in funds if this equivalent source of supply becomes 
a reliable alternative to imported water. 

 
5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective on January 1, 2022 and shall remain 

in effect until such time as it is rescinded or superseded.   
 
6. This Resolution supersedes Resolution No. 2020-30 adopted on June 2, 2020. 
 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 19th day of October 2021. 
 
  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   

  Chris Mann, President Board of Directors 

   
ATTEST:   

   

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 167 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-172 

Date: October 19, 2021 Task: N/A 

Prepared By: Allison Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Consideration of the Proposed Workers’ Compensation Insurance Policy 
Renewal for 2021-22 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute contracts 
with Redwood F&C Berkshire Hathaway for workers’ compensation 
insurance. 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District currently has a workers’ compensation insurance policy with EPIC 
Brokers with insurance coverage provided by Berkshire and Hathaway.  
  
The District has investigated and requested a variety of quotes.  The attached spreadsheet details 
the quotes received.  Redwood F&C Berkshire Hathaway submitted a quote for $238,920 and 
has the strongest AM Best Rating of A++XV, which is the highest rating given and has more than 
sufficient financial capacity to provide the necessary policy limits.  This is an increase of $20,252 
or 9.3% from the prior year premium of $218,668.      
 
The Experience Modification percentage increased from 156% in the 2020-21 policy to 164% in 
the 2021-22 policy.  This was due to an increased amount for claims and actual losses as detailed 
in the table below.  This does not reflect the District safety record; the District maintains a good 
safety record that has allowed the broker to obtain multiple competitive quotes.  Also taken into 
consideration is COVID-19 Pandemic and the Governors Order requiring Worker Compensation 
to bear the cost of employee work related illness due to COVID-19.   
 

Policy Period Actual Losses # of Claims 

11/01/2020 – 10/31/2021 $124,654 10 

11/01/2019 – 10/31/2020 $46,099 4 

11/01/2018 – 10/31/2019 $225,522 10 

11/01/2017 – 10/31/2018 $48,232 8 

11/01/2016 - 10/31/2017 $14,189 5 

  

Calculated Experience Mod. 164% 

 
The table details the actual losses for the last five years that effect the Experience Modification 
Factor.  The calculation methodology is below. 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 168 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-172  Page 2 of 5 

 
 

The chart above provides the historical Experience Modification Factor percentages from 2005 to 
2021.  Staff recommends that the Board selects Redwood F&C Berkshire Hathaway due to the 
proposal cost, long-term working relationship, and a solid financial rating of A++XV. 
 
 

Financial Consideration 
 
Funding for the insurance is included in the fiscal year 2021-22 budget and will be split between 
all funds Workers Compensation expense accounts.  If a budget adjustment is needed as a result 
of the increase in the premium cost, it will be brought before the Board for approval at a future 
date.     
 

Fund % 
Allocation 

G/L Account Amount 

Water 45% 02-506-50019 $107,514.00 

Sewer 45% 03-506-50019 $107,514.00 

Recycled Water 10% 04-506-50019 $23,892.00 

Total $238,920.00 

86
79 75 80

68

106
112 114

69 65 61 61 60

74

93

156
164

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 M
o

d
if

ic
at

io
n

 F
ac

to
r 

%
YVWD Experience Modification Factor Percentage

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 169 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-172  Page 3 of 5 

 
0 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 170 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-172  Page 4 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 171 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-172  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 172 of 201



 

Director Memorandum 21-173 

Date: October 19, 2021 

Prepared By: Allison M. Edmisten, Chief Financial Officer 

Subject: Consideration of Renewing the Cyber Liability Insurance for 2021-22 

Recommendation: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute contracts with 
Alliant Insurance Services for cyber liability insurance. 

 
Cyber liability insurance covers financial losses that result from data breaches and other cyber 
events.  A cyber event means any actual or suspected unauthorized system access, electronic 
attack or privacy breach, including denial of service attack, cyber terrorism, hacking attack, Trojan 
horse, phishing attack, man-in-the-middle attack, application-layer attack, compromised key 
attack, malware infection (including spyware or Ransomware) or computer virus.  System failure 
means any sudden, unexpected, and continuous downtime of the computer systems which 
renders the District incapable of supporting their normal business function and is caused by an 
application bug, an internal network failure or hardware failure.  
  
The attached proposal includes both first-party and third-party coverages.  First-party coverages 
apply to losses sustained directly by the District, as in the District’s computer system was lost, 
stolen, or compromised.  Third-party coverage covers possible claims against the District by 
people or businesses whose data has been stolen as a result of the cyber incident or system 
failure.  There are numerous other coverage parts that are associated with a data breach, 
including notification costs associated with a data breach, incident response, legal and regulatory 
costs, and cyber extortion (ransom).   
  
The cyber liability insurance market is experiencing significant increases due to the increase in 
cyber-crime and ransomware attacks.   
 
The District currently has cyber liability insurance coverage with a $3,000,000 limit and 
recommends staying with the policy coverage for the annual cost of $23,024.75.  This is an 
increase of 88.9% from the prior year.   
 
Given the significant increase, Alliant Insurance Services did explore alternatives from other 
underwriters who have historically written cyber liabilities for public agencies.  One declined to 
quote as they are no longer entertaining new public agency risk.  The second agency did not 
respond.   
 
  
Financial Consideration:  
  
Although the premium for this insurance coverage has increased by approximately $11,000, 
District staff does not anticipate that a budget adjustment will be needed.  This cost will be divided 
amongst enterprise funds as provided below. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 173 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 2 of 20 

Fund 
% 

Allocation 
G/L Account Amount 

Water 45% 02-506-56001 $10,361.14 

Sewer 45% 03-506-56001 $10,361.14 

Recycled Water 10% 04-506-56001 $2,302.47 

Total $23,024.75 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 174 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 3 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 175 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 4 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 176 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 5 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 177 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 6 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 178 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 7 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 179 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 8 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 180 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 9 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 181 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 10 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 182 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 11 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 183 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 12 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 184 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 13 of 20 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 185 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 14 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 186 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 15 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 187 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 16 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 188 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 17 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 189 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 18 of 20 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 190 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 19 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 191 of 201



Director Memorandum No. 21-173  Page 20 of 20 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 192 of 201



 

 

Board Reports and Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 193 of 201



August 20211 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 

Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

72 full time employees 
 

FY 2021-22 Operating Budget: Water Division - $17,274,066 
 Sewer Division - $13,136,249 
 Recycled Water Division - $1,357,175 
 

Number of Services: 14,440 drinking water connections serving 19,355 units 
14,363 sewer connections serving 21,429 units 
695 recycled water connections serving 845 units 

 

Water System: 236 miles of drinking water pipelines 
2,134 fire hydrants 
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
3.376 billion gallon annual drinking water demand  
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 
223 miles of sewer mainlines 
4,643 sewer manholes 
7 sewer lift stations 
1.46 billion gallons of recycled water produced per year 

 

Recycled Water: 32 miles of recycled water pipelines 
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
0.623 billion gallon annual recycled water demand 

 

Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 
1.756 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.595 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 194 of 201



August 20211 
 

 
Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and 

Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008. 
 

 
 
Typical Rates, Fees and Charges: 
 

• Drinking Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons $1.626 per each 1,000 gallons 
16,000 gallons to 60,000 gallons $2.419 per each 1,000 gallons 
61,000 gallons to 100,000 gallons $2.508 per each 1,000 gallons 
101,000 gallons or more $2.708 per each 1,000 gallons 
 

• Recycled Water Commodity Charge: 
1,000 gallons or more $1.795 per each 1,000 gallons 

 

• Water Meter Service Charge (Drinking Water or Recycled Water): 
5/8” x 3/4” Water Meter $16.50 per month 
1” Water Meter $27,56 per month 
1-1/2” Water Meter $54.95 per month 

 

• Sewer Collection and Treatment Charge: 
Typical Residential Charge $44.52 per month 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 195 of 201



August 20211 
 

State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
 

 
 

 
San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal 

Water District 

San Gorgonio Pass 
Water Agency 

Service Area Size 353 square miles 222 square miles 

Table “A” Water Entitlement 102,600 acre feet 17,300 acre feet 

Imported Water Rate $125.80 / acre foot $399 / acre foot 

Tax Rates for FY 2020-21 $0.1300 per $100 $0.1750 per $100 

Number of Board Members Five (5)  Seven (7) 

Operating Budget FY 2021-22 $52,506,150 $14,019,000 
 

Imported Water Charges (Pass-through State Water Project Charge) 

• San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District - Customers in San Bernardino 
County or City of Yucaipa pay a pass-through amount of $0.270 per 1,000 gallons. 
 

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency - Customers in Riverside County or City of 
Calimesa pay a pass-through amount of $0.660 per 1,000 gallons.  A rate change 
of up to $0.857 per 1,000 gallons is pending future consideration by YVWD. 

 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 196 of 201



August 20211 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated-Sludge Process - A secondary biological wastewater treatment process where bacteria reproduce 
at a high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) - The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids - Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the wastewater 
treatment process.  This high-quality product can be recycled as a soil amendment on farmland or further 
processed as an earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and 
stimulate plant growth. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Certificate of Participation (COP) – A type of financing where an investor purchases a share of the lease 
revenues of a program rather than the bond being secured by those revenues. 

Coliform Bacteria - A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere used as indicators of sewage pollution.  E. coli are the most common bacteria in 
wastewater. 

Collections System - In wastewater, it is the system of typically underground pipes that receive and convey 
sanitary wastewater or storm water. 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 197 of 201



August 20211 
 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Contaminants of Potential Concern (CPC) - Pharmaceuticals,  hormones,  and  other  organic wastewater 
contaminants. 

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection by-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams, and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Levels of Service (LOS) - Goals to support environmental and public expectations for performance. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil, or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 198 of 201



August 20211 
 

steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line - A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
(MGD) of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to Orange County Sanitation District 
for treatment, use and/or disposal. 

Secondary treatment - Biological wastewater treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where 
bacteria and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge - Untreated solid material created by the treatment of wastewater. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature, and humidity.  

South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) -  Regional regulatory agency  that develops plans 
and regulations designed to achieve public health standards by reducing emissions from business and industry. 

Special district - A form of local government created by a local community to meet a specific need.  Yucaipa 
Valley Water District is a County Water District formed pursuant to Section 30000 of the California Water Code 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps, and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans, or reservoirs behind dams.  In addition to using 
groundwater, Yucaipa Valley Water District receives surface water from the Oak Glen area.  

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) - Pursuant to legislation signed by Governor Jerry Brown 
in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act requires water agencies to manage groundwater 
extractions to not cause undesirable results from over production. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling filter - A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in wastewater as it trickles over them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service (https://www.digalert.org) that notifies utilities such as water, 
telephone, cable and sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days 
before you dig).  

Urban runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that carry pollutants into the storm drains, rivers, 
lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs, or controls the flow of water by opening, closing, or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater - Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water Cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again.  

Water Pressure - Water pressure is created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps 
that deliver water to customers.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 199 of 201

https://www.digalert.org/


August 20211 
 

Water Service Line - A water service line is used to deliver water from the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
mainline distribution system.  

Water table - the upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water transfer - a transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Watershed - A watershed is the region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a 
specific point on a stream or river.  

Water-Wise House Call - a service which provides a custom evaluation of a customer's indoor and outdoor 
water use and landscape watering requirements.  

Well - a hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground aquifer.  

Wetlands - lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools or 
swamps.  

WIFIA - Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act.  The WIFIA program administered by the 
Environmental Protection Agency accelerates investment in our nation’s water infrastructure by providing long-
term, low-cost supplemental loans for regionally and nationally significant projects. 

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 200 of 201



August 20211 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

WIFIA Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 19, 2021 - Page 201 of 201




